
 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 

MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION  
Virtual via Microsoft Teams 

January 6, 2025 
6:30 pm 
Agenda 

 
1. Adoption of Agenda 

 
2. New Business 
 
3. Minutes  
 

a. Meeting Minutes of December 2nd, 2025 
 
4. Closed Meeting Session 

 
5. Unfinished Business 

 
a. Development Permit Application No. 2025-55 

Marco Bergeron & Jacinthe Moreau 
Lot 1, Block 2, Plan 1510616 within NW 19-7-1 W5 
Modular Home & Accessory Building – Variance 

 
6. Development Permit Applications 
 
7. Development Reports  
 

a. Development Officer’s Report 
- Report for December 2025 

 
8. New Business  

 
9. Correspondence 
 
10. Next Regular Meeting – February 3rd, 2026 

 
11. Adjournment  



 

1 
 

Meeting Minutes of the 
Municipal Planning Commission 

December 2nd, 2025 6:30 pm 
MD of Pincher Creek Council Chambers 

 
ATTENDANCE 
 
Commission:  Chairperson Jeff Hammond, Member at Large Laurie Klassen, Reeve Rick Lemire, 

Councillors Tony Bruder, Jim Welsch, Dave Cox and John MacGarva 
 
Staff: CAO Roland Milligan, Development Officer Laura McKinnon 
 
Planning 
Advisor: ORRSC, Senior Planner Gavin Scott, ORRSC, Assistant Planner Kevin Theriault 
 
Absent:  
 
 
Chairperson Jeff Hammond called the meeting to order, the time being 6:30 pm.  
 
1. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
Councillor Dave Cox      25/065 
 
Moved that the agenda for December 2nd, 2025, be approved as presented. 
 
        Carried 

2. NEW BUSINESS 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 
Member at Large Laurie Klassen    25/066 

 
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting Minutes for November 4th, 2025 be 
approved as presented.  

        Carried 
 

4. CLOSED MEETING SESSION 
 
Councillor Jim Welsch     25/067 
 
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission close the meeting to the public, under the 
authority of the Municipal Government Act, Section 197(2.1), the time being 6:31 pm.  
 
        Carried 
 
Councillor John MacGarva     25/068 
 
Moved that the Municipal Planning Commission open the meeting to the public, the time being 7:07 pm. 
         



MINUTES 
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
December 2nd 2025 

 
 

2 
 

Carried 
 

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

 
6. DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS 

 
a. Development Permit Application No. 2025-54 

Donald Comer 
Lot 1, Plan 9511705 within NE 21-8-1 W5 
Tourist Home 

 
Councillor Jim Welsch                                                              25/069 
 
Moved that Development Permit No. 2025-54, for a Tourist Home, be tabled subject to the following 
Reason(s): 
 

1. That administration obtain proof that the easement granting access to Lot 1, Plan 9511705 is 
sufficient for the requested Development, or that the landowner granting access is satisfied 
with the development and it’s conditions.   
 

 
b. Development Permit Application No. 2025-55 

Marco Bergeron & Jacinthe Moreau 
Lot 1, Block 2, Plan 1510616 within NW 19-7-1 W5 
Accessory Building - Variance 

 
Councillor John MacGarva                                                        25/070 
 
Moved that Development Permit No. 2025-55, for an Accessory Building, be tabled subject to the 
following Reasons(s): 
 

1. Confirmation of setback requirements from Chief Mountain Gas Co-op pipeline located on 
adjacent property Lot 3, Block 1, Plan 2310499, and obtain easement if required. 
 

 
c. Development Permit Application No. 2025-56 

Sherryl & John Egely 
NW 22-5-28 W4 
Moved In Residential Building 

 
Reeve Rick Lemire                                                                    25/071 
 
Moved that Development Permit No. 2025-56, for a moved-in residential building, be approved 
subject to the following Condition(s): 
 



MINUTES 
Municipal Planning Commission (MPC) 

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
December 2nd 2025 

 
 

3 
 

1. That this development meets the minimum provisions as required in Land Use Bylaw 1349-
23. 

2. That the required approach meets the requirements of Policy C-PW-026 Approaches to 
Private Property, as depicted by the MD Public Works Manager. 

 
 

7. DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
 

a. Development Officer’s Report  
 

Councillor Tony Bruder         25/072 
 
Moved that the Development Officer’s Report, for the period November 2025, be received as 
information. 

        Carried 
 

8. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 

9. CORRESPONDENCE 
 
 

10. NEXT MEETING – January 6th, 2026; 6:30 pm. 
 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Councillor John MacGarva     25/073 
 
Moved that the meeting adjourn, the time being 7:16 pm. 
 
        Carried 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________  __________________________________ 
Chairperson Jeff Hammond    Development Officer 
Municipal Planning Commission   Laura McKinnon    
       Municipal Planning Commission  



Recommendation to Municipal Planning Commission

TITLE:
Applicant:
Location:
Division:

Size of Parcel:

Zoning:

Development:

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT No. 2025-55

Marco Bergeron & Jacinthe Moreau
Lot 1, Plan 9511705 within NE 21-8-1 W5
5
1.6 ha (4.02Acres)
Agriculture (A)
Modular Home & Accessory Building - Variance

.A f\

PREPARED BY: Laura McKinnon DATE: January 2, 2026

DEPARTMENT: Planning and Development

3^^/ci/o'^

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Chief Mountain Gas Email

2. Development Permit Application 2025-55

3. House & Accessory Building Photo
4. CIS Aerial
5. GIA Aerial with Septic Tank

APPROVALS:
//(

Department Director Date

Roland Milligan

CAO Date

RECOMMENDATION:

That Development Permit Application No. 2025-55, for a Modular Home and Accessory Building be

approved subject to the following Condition(s):

Condition(s):

1. That this development meets the minimum provisions required in Land Use Bylaw 1349-23.

Waiver(s):

1. That a 6m (19ft) Variance be granted from the Minimum Setback from All Other Property

Lines of 7.5m (24.6ft) for a setback of 1.5m (5ft) to the West for the Accessory Building.

2. That a 43.47m (142.6ft) Variance be granted from the Minimum Setback from IVIajor

Powerlines and Pipelines of 100m (328ft) for a setback of 56.53m (185.46ft) for the Modular

Home.

BACKGROUND:
January 6, 2026 Report

At the December 2, 2025 Meeting, the MPC tabled Development Permit Application No. 2025-

55 pending setback waiver or requirements from Chief Mountain Gas Coop (Attachment No. 1).

Presented to: Municipal Planning Commission

Date of Meeting: January 6, 2026
Page 1 of 3



Recommendation to Municipal Planning Commission

As per the email from Chief Mountain Gas Co-op, the required setback is 30m from the center

of the line location. The location of the house is beyond the 30m setback requirement, and only

requires a waiver from Land Use Bylaw 1349-23.

December 2, 2025 Report

- On October 22, 2025, the MD accepted the Development Permit Application No. 2025-55 from

applicants Marco Bergeron and Jacinthe Moreau. (Attachment No. 2).

- This application is to allow for an accessoiy building with a variance on an Agricultural (A) parcel.

- This application is being placed in front of the MPC because:
Within the Agriculture (A) Land Use District, a Variance is a Discretionaiy Use.

- The applicant is intending to move on a modular home and accessory building (Attachment No. 3).

However, due to topography and setback requirements on two sides of the property, the area to build is
very limited (Attachment No. 4).

- The modular house location meets all required setbacks and therefor does not require a variance.

However, the applicant is requesting that the accessory building (garage) be placed close to the west

property fenceline so that the required truck can access the septic tank in order to empty it (Attachment

No. 5).

The application was forwarded to the adjacent landowners for comment; no responses were received
at the time of this report being written.

Presented to: Municipal Planning Commission Page 2 of 3

Date of Meeting: January 6, 2026



Recommendation to Municipal Planning Commission

Location of Proposed Development

^ARABEAUlsARABEAUBEERgg^
iHOLDINGS|HOLDINGS|PIERSG^g

4-^LTD'n-l^ B,

^HOLDINGS
^1%^

ANCTIL
s&c

'ITHOMPSON'J
.RA'&C3

S SI'MICHALSKY'
|?ANDERSON|

M,ETAb
[BM, ET ^f r^NDERSON UMUSELHJS"

b'c-^'-^M'^Q'rlBM.iiMjKrLo'i
^wS^^N;»DE^ON[3usELT£;

IBM'ETAL | p», CT/AI i
[MUSELIUS,

M&B

DBRECh?
GREEN

I/R;'

^^G,^y

f̂\ —y
LIKUSKIlLE'S^GSKYiMONAGH^ESKOS'

I/TEA^FG&S/^'' M&jgj "giDs;

THIBE||i!^"AIER^Sl
^'D&BV^F^

l~iVwA^r>o U'

I/ M&Jl •DS^

l^WGOS"
\NCHING|

[Di

UKUSKII-^1
_EA^ESKOSKY|LESKOS'^EA^

BD

DARREN'
TAYLOR

iHARVESTi
EING]

G&S

-1B

Location of
Proposed

Development
D"

.ESKO^ES^KY;LESKO^ ^3 ^AQOS
G&S .G&S G&S]

we
IRANCHING

LTD

(CROW-\ BCROW-
LESKOSKY.RiyERSIDELESKOS^3^ULSENPOULSENl^F<;Tpc1

'nsc F RANP.H I ^ootB^MO^AJ-rKio^tA/li01^01 r^

Presented to: Municipal Planning Commission

Date of Meeting: January 6, 2026

Page 3 of 3



���������	
��
���
�
��
��
��
�
���
���
���������
��� ��
!"#$�%"&$#�'�("�#)*���+�,
-.-/01-0.2
113/4
567� 8����
6"9'::�:
!5,#':��;�<�&#,=':">��"����(��("�)8����?���
%����"�
'%
2.#����%
#':'#�#
<��#
�>�
"�:���
�<
���
�':�
��"��'�:(
5%
���
�':�
�==���%
��
"��%%
�>����;�
=��"��
@�
@���,
��A��%�
�
��"���
��
,�:�
��<���
$���:,
@���
"�##�:"�%(
B>�:�
C
���:
+�,?
��"
2?
-.-/
��
1.3.D
56
8����
6"9'::�:
!EFGHIJKLMNOPGFQHIRSKOROKKTUVWURV)
@����3XY
Z[\][̂_̀
abc
def
g\[bh[
iecĵk
_l[
h[_]bim
̂[nfŶ[k[c_h
oê
b
̂[hYp[cqb\
pr[\\Ycs̀
\eib_[p
rY_lYc
_l[cê_lr[h_
g_c
eo
tu
vwxyxv
uz
{|e_
v̀
}\eim
~̀
�\bc
vzv��v���

�Ycp\d̀
�����
���������
���Z[�[\egk[c_
��i[̂
�Z
�o
�Ycil[̂
â[[mv��y
X[̂̂ec
��[cf[}e�
~yw�Ycil[̂
â[[m̀
�}���vu���i[�

���x�~yx�v���kbY\�


�� ¡¢£¤¥¦§̈© �ª¡¢«¬¤̈«̈¤¤­®̄°®«̄±²³́µ¶
³·̧
³¶¶¹º́³»¼̧
³»»³º½²¼·»¶
³¾¼
º¹·¿̧́¼·»́³µ
³·̧
́·»¼·̧¼̧
¶¹µ¼µÀ
¿¹¾
»½¼
́·̧ Á̧́́ Â³µ
¹¾
¼·»́»À
»¹
Ã½¹²
»½¼À½³Á¼
Ä¼¼·
³̧ ¾̧¼¶¶¼̧Å

Æ·
»½¼
¼Á¼·»
À¹Â
½³Á¼
¾¼º¼́Á¼̧
»½́¶
¼²³́µ
ÄÀ
²¶́»³Ç¼È
Éµ¼³¶¼
·¹»́¿À
»½¼
¶¼·̧¼¾
³·̧
̧¼µ¼»¼¿́
¿¾¹²
À¹Â¾
¼²³́µ
¶À¶»¼²Å

Ế¶ºµ¹¶́·ËÈ
º¹ÉÀ́·ËÈ
¹¾
̧¶́»¾́ÄÂ»́·Ë
»½́¶
́·¿¹¾²³»́¹·
́¶
¶»¾́º»µÀ
É¾¹½́Ä́»¼̧Å

Ì¼
̧¹
·¹»³ºº¼É»
³·À
µ́³Ä́µ́»À
¿¾¹²
¶¹¿»Ã³¾¼
Á́¾Â¶¼¶
»½³»
²³À
½³Á¼
Ä¼¼·
»¾³·¶²»́»¼̧
Á́³
¼²³́µÈ
¹¾
³¶¶¹º́³»¼̧
³»»³º½²¼·»¶Å



00�������
Í(
��� ��?
Î>'�<
ÏÐ�"��';�
�<<'"��Î>'�<
6��:��':
Í�%
Î�0�=
8�,(14.
0
1%�
Ñ�����
Ï�%�?Ò(�(
��Ð
2ÓÎ��,%��:?
5������?
B.9
.9.





  

       

    

                

 

   

       

   

        

   

         

              

     

      

            

       

 

   

   

      

   
 

   
 

   
 

   
 

   

      

  

 

 

 

        

        



 

   

   

       

   
  

   
  

   
  

   
 

   

      

 

 

 

        

  

     

  

   

     

                      

         

                   

          

    

  

  

                  

         



 

        
        
          

     

              
          

                
               
             

  

          

              
            

   

               
             

 

            

     

             
        

        

         
         

     

            

              
  

              
               

     

               
             

            

         



  
  

 

     
  

  
     

 

 

     

 

   

 

 

  

 

  



  

     
   

   

  

 

 



      

  

 

  
  

 

 

 

 
 















DEVELOPMENT OFFICER REPORT

December 2025

Development / Community Services Activities include:

South Canadian Rockies - Board Meeting

Planning Session

Subdivision Meeting
Municipal Planning Commission Meeting
MD Christmas Party
All Seasons Resort Act Meeting

Fortis Meeting
Committee & Council Meeting

Northback Meeting - Socio-Economic Survey

Dec 2

Dec 2
Dec 2
Dec 2
Dec 5
Dec 6
Dec 6
Dec 9
Dec 9
Dec 19-Jan 2 Christmas Holidays

PLANNING DEPARTMENT STATISTICS

Development Permits Issued by the Development Officer for December 2025

No.

2025-60

Applicant

Raegan & Lareelyn

Affleck

Division

4

Legal Address

SW 11-8-1 W5

Development

Modular Home & Accessory

Building

Development Permits Issued by Municipal Planning Commission December 2025

2025-56 John & Sherryl Egely 1 NW 22-5-28 W4 Moved In Residential Building

Development Statistics to Date

DESCRIPTION

Dev Permits

Issued

Dev

Applications
Accepted

Utility Permits

2-Dec

1-Dec

0-Dec

2025
To date (Jan)

55
38-DO

16 -MPC
1 - Council

60

48

2024

54
38-DO

16 -MPC

58

23

2023

49
31-DO

18-MPC

54

35

2022

48
29-DO

19-MPC

49

12



Issued

Subdivision
Applications
Approved

Rezoning

DESCRIPTION

Compliance Cert

1-Dec

0-Dec

0-Dec

12

2025 to Date
(Dec)

16

12

1

2024

34

5

0

2023

21

8

5

2022

32

RECOMMENDATION:

That the report for the period ending January 31, 2025, be received as information.

!- ]/-] <- <.-

Prepared by: Laura McKinnon, Development Officer Date: January 2, 2025

Respectfully Submitted to: Municipal Planning Commission


	MUNICIPAL PLANNING COMMISSION



